
19.0498.03000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council

02/11/2019

Amendment to: HB 1064

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues

Expenditures

Appropriations

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political  
subdivision.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

Counties

Cities

School Districts

Townships

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

HB1064 requires certain case processing statistics to be provided by the office of administrative hearings with 
regard to workforce safety and insurance hearing requests received. We expect no significant fiscal impact.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal  
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation.



Name: Frances Zuther

Agency: Office of Administrative Hearings

Telephone: (701) 328-3268

Date Prepared: 02/11/2019



19.0498.02000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council

02/11/2019

Amendment to: HB 1064

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues

Expenditures

Appropriations

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political  
subdivision.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

Counties

Cities

School Districts

Townships

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

HB1064 requires certain case processing statistics to be provided by the office of administrative hearings with 
regard to workforce safety and insurance hearing requests received. We expect no significant fiscal impact.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal  
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation.



Name: Frances Zuther

Agency: Office of Administrative Hearings

Telephone: (701) 328-3268

Date Prepared: 02/11/2019



19.0498.02000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council

02/07/2019

Amendment to: HB 1064

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues

Expenditures

Appropriations

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political  
subdivision.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

Counties

Cities

School Districts

Townships

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

HB1064 requires certain case processing statistics to be provided by the office of administrative hearings with 
regard to workforce safety and insurance hearing requests received. We expect no significant fiscal impact.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal  
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

see attached

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation.



Name: John Halvorson

Agency: WSI

Telephone: 328-6016

Date Prepared: 12/21/2018



 

WORKFORCE SAFETY & INSURANCE 

 2019 LEGISLATION 
SUMMARY OF ACTUARIAL INFORMATION 

 

 

BILL NO: HB 1064 

 

BILL DESCRIPTION: Administrative Hearings 

 

SUMMARY OF ACTUARIAL INFORMATION: Workforce Safety & Insurance, together with its 

consulting actuaries, The Burkhalter Group, has reviewed the legislation proposed in this bill in conformance 

with Section 54-03-25 of the North Dakota Century Code. 

 

The proposed legislation exempts WSI from the statutory mandate to use the Office of Administrative Hearings 

for administrative proceedings; allows hearing officers to be designated by the organization; and repeals statute 

requiring WSI to contract with Office of Administrative Hearings for the designation of administrative law 

judges. 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: No significant impact to premium rate levels is anticipated. 

 

DATE: December 21, 2018 

 



19.0498.01000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council

12/21/2018

Bill/Resolution No.: HB 1064

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues

Expenditures

Appropriations

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political  
subdivision.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

Counties

Cities

School Districts

Townships

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

see attached

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal  
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

see attached

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation.



Name: John Halvorson

Agency: WSI

Telephone: 328-6016

Date Prepared: 12/21/2018



 

WORKFORCE SAFETY & INSURANCE 

 2019 LEGISLATION 
SUMMARY OF ACTUARIAL INFORMATION 

 

 

BILL NO: HB 1064 

 

BILL DESCRIPTION: Administrative Hearings 

 

SUMMARY OF ACTUARIAL INFORMATION: Workforce Safety & Insurance, together with its 

consulting actuaries, The Burkhalter Group, has reviewed the legislation proposed in this bill in conformance 

with Section 54-03-25 of the North Dakota Century Code. 

 

The proposed legislation exempts WSI from the statutory mandate to use the Office of Administrative Hearings 

for administrative proceedings; allows hearing officers to be designated by the organization; and repeals statute 

requiring WSI to contract with Office of Administrative Hearings for the designation of administrative law 

judges. 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: No significant impact to premium rate levels is anticipated. 

 

DATE: December 21, 2018 

 



2017 HOUSE INDUSTRY, BUSINESS AND LABOR 
 

HB 1064 

  



2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Industry, Business and Labor Committee 
Peace Garden Room, State Capitol 

HB 1064  
1/28/2019 

Job # 31556 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk:  Ellen LeTang typed by Mary Brucker 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Hearing officer services provided by the office of administrative hearings. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachments 1-2 

 
Vice Chairman Lefor:  Opens the hearing on HB 1064. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  This bill relates to the appointment of the administrative law judges and 
to provide for an application.  In subsection 1 of section 1 on lines 11-14 indicates certain 
state agencies are not required to use administrative law judges.  They have the ability to not 
use them.  On page 2 it adds language that this may arrange for the designation of hearing 
officers to conduct rehearings, issue final findings of fact, conclusions of law, and orders.  
This would grant authority to WSI to use something other than ALJs for determining a ruling 
on a dispute between an injured worker and the state of North Dakota.  The purpose of this 
bill is within WSI there are two general issues that lead to complaints by injured workers. One 
is that WSI runs a closely managed care system from the top down.  The other area of 
complaint is length of time it takes for a reconsideration for a ruling.  Injured workers cannot 
get benefits until there has been a resolution on their claim.  WSI has been receiving a 
significant increase in the number of frustrations that injured workers have in getting their 
claims resolved.  This bill would allow WSI to consider it may go outside of the ALJ system if 
they can expedite a ruling on a specific claim.     
 
Rep Laning:  If you don’t have the administrative law judge then who would conduct the 
hearing to hear both sides of the argument? 
 
Chairman Keiser:  We moved WSI to the ALJ system.  This gives WSI the authority to use 
ALJs or go outside.   
 
Rep M Nelson:  How does the worker know the final findings of facts, conclusions of law, 
and orders?  How is this going to work? 
 
Chairman Keiser:  I would like to defer that question to WSI.  We have to find whatever 
mechanism we can to expedite the decision process relative to claims.   
 



House Industry, Business and Labor Committee  
HB 1064 
Jan 28, 2019 
Page 2  
   

Rep M Nelson:  Would it make more sense to bypass the ALJ system entirely and just simply 
go to court.   
 
Chairman Keiser:  WSI can answer that question.  I believe you can do that now if you want.   
 
Jodi Bjornson~General Counsel for WSI:  The intent of the parties was to continue the 
discussions.  We have a meeting today at 4pm with OAH’s advisory board and the Governor’s 
office.  We would like to have that meeting first before then continue with the hearing to 
ensure that we have all the information on the table.  Could we postpone the hearing until 
later in the week? 
 
Chairman Keiser:  We can’t postpone it but we can continue it.  We will reopen it later this 
week.  There is a fiscal note on this so we’ll have to try and hear it on Wednesday.   
 
Rep Kasper:  What is the issue that you are trying to correct? 
 
Jodi Bjornson:  The management of the process is what we’re seeing differently.  We feel 
there are measures an ALJ can take to expedite the process that we would like to see 
happen.  We would hope that they would continue to improve but we’re at a point now where 
we have to go in a different direction for injured workers or service needs to improve.  
 
Rep Kasper:  What you’re saying is the administrative appeals process, the people who 
handle it, are not operating on a timely basis to get things done quicker than what they’re 
doing. 
 
Jodi Bjornson:  Yes, I think that’s fair.   
 
Rep D Ruby:  What percentage of appeals do you think you would consider for using a 
different way of doing other than the ALJ? 
 
Jodi Bjornson:  We do not want to move away from OAH, this is used as a last resort.  We 
would like other options to expedite the process.  I don’t have a percentage for you but that 
would be determined by how many cases there are in August 2019 if this passes and what 
those numbers look like at the time.   
 
Rep D Ruby:  My concern with the complexity of the claims and such is that there would be 
a concern with the injured employee that it’s kept in house. 
 
Jodi Bjornson:  It’s our concern as well.  We want to keep WSI arm’s length away from the 
process.  There are other services that can manage the process for you and hire the ALJs.   
 
Vice Chairman Lefor:  Is it a matter that it is incredibly high or a standard overall to have 
that option even when it’s not as high some times? 
 
Jodi Bjornson:  This case can’t be cookie cutter and stringent.  It has to be fluid.  We would 
like standards in place for the ALJs to utilize.  As long as those are being met then we have 
no problems remaining with OAH.   
 



House Industry, Business and Labor Committee  
HB 1064 
Jan 28, 2019 
Page 3  
   

Vice Chairman Lefor:  You would use this when you’re in communication with ALJ that they 
are at their capacity therefore you’re going to plan b, is that how you’re looking at this? 
 
Jodi Bjornson:  We have not delved into those details but that would be one approach.    
 
Vice Chairman Lefor:  Do you have communication with ALJ? 
 
Rep Kasper:  The bill doesn’t address standards so how would you get standards in place? 
 
Jodi Bjornson:  We do have standards with OAH contractually but they are not being met 
to our satisfaction.  We need other options if they are not meeting those standards.  
 
Rep Kasper:  Could you provide the standards and would you be able to make comments 
where the standards are not being followed? 
 
Jodi Bjornson:  I would prefer to discuss at the meeting today before I continue with that.   
 
Rep Kasper:    Have you had other meetings along those lines or is today the first 
discussion? 
 
Jodi Bjornson:  We have been meeting with the director of OAH intermittently over the last 
several months.   
 
Rep M Nelson:  What things are slowing this process down?   
 
Jodi Bjornson:  We believe it’s the overall management issue of the files.  It’s generally not 
pushing the cases along to the extent we would like.  I would prefer to keep the specifics until 
Wednesday if possible.   
 
Chairman Keiser:  Support?  Is there opposition to HB 1064? 
 
Tim Dawson~Director of the Office of Administrative Hearings:  Attachment 1.   Ended 
testimony at 26:40.   
 
Rep Kasper:  What I heard you say is echoing that of what Jodi Bjornson indicated is the 
problem.  Can you provide the records of WSI hearings that your agency has conducted over 
the last 24 months with the start & end dates?  What is the alternative for WSI if they do not 
use your agency?  It appears there are other agencies.   
 
Tim Dawson:  The agencies that don’t use us were from the creation of the Office of 
Administrative Hearings.  The ones that aren’t using us have a long history of doing long 
administrative hearings already.  Many of those do not need an ALJ for review.  There is a 
certain lag and it came with the oil boom.  The number of hearings increased by 30% and 
those that went to hearing also went up 25-30% so that became a scheduling nightmare for 
everyone involved.  The length is because the attorneys are not agreeing on a date, they 
don’t have time.  You need the input of other people so that you don’t make it unfair.  We 
need to look at this very carefully.   
 



House Industry, Business and Labor Committee  
HB 1064 
Jan 28, 2019 
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Chairman Keiser:  Do you want us to define undue delay for you? 
 
Tim Dawson:  I would prefer that be done in a meeting with WSI and other people involved 
in the area because there are a lot of moving parts here.  Our goal is to provide a fair hearing.   
 
Chairman Keiser:  In the worker’s comp world, we have defined undue delay on many items.  
If they don’t make a ruling in a timely fashion, then the claimant wins and there’s no recourse 
for the agency.  We have to be careful.   
 
Waylon Hadegaard, President of AFL-CIO:  I rise reluctantly against this.  I want these 
adjudicated as quickly as possible.  The optics of this bill is terrible.  I don’t think this is the 
right answer.  I really hope there is another solution out there.   
 
Jaclyn Hall~Executive Director of the North Dakota Association for Justice:  
Attachment 2.  Ended testimony at 37:03. 
 
Vice Chairman Lefor:  I think WSI is bringing this forward because they want quicker 
adjudication of the claims.  It doesn’t change the fact that if there’s a fat caseload and injured 
workers are waiting longer for outcomes then what would your solution be?  What is going to 
help you move these cases faster? 
 
Jaclyn Hall:  This bill does not address any of those issues.  This bill pulls the authority out 
of the Office of Administrative Hearings.  If there needs to be a decision on change on how 
they flow through processes, then that’s a completely separate bill.  In 2015-16 everyone 
saw high increases in claims because of the increase in population.  These claims are starting 
to resolve faster because they’re seeing less claims.  Today we’re talking about pulling this 
out of Administrative Hearings and giving WSI the ability to hire within their own organization.    
 
Chairman Keiser:  Opposition?  Is there neutral testimony?  Hearing closed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Industry, Business and Labor Committee 
Peace Garden Room, State Capitol 

HB 1064 
1/30/2019 

Job # 31848 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk:  Ellen LeTang typed by Mary Brucker 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Hearing officer services provided by the office of administrative hearings.   
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1-3 

 
Chairman Keiser:  Reopens the hearing on HB 1064. 
 
Jodi Bjornson~General Counsel at WSI:  Attachment 1.  Ended testimony at 26:58. 
 
Rep Bosch:  In your letter dated September 26 to Mr. Dawson was this the first time that 
you raised a concern with Mr. Dawson? 
 
Jodi Bjornson:  There were several communications prior to this.   
 
Rep Bosch:  Do you have a copy of the history? 
 
Jodi Bjornson:  Yes.  Some of that will have to be redacted for confidentiality purposes.  
The main part of our discussions were throughout the course of 2018 and going back to the 
middle of 2017.   
 
Rep P. Anderson:  If WSI hires another vendor who pays for the other vender? 
 
Jodi Bjornson:  We do just like we’re paying OAH now.   
 
Rep P. Anderson:  Could OAH hire the vendor? 
 
Jodi Bjornson:  That is an option we didn’t consider.  We can sure think about that.  We 
share that concern and I hope that the system under OAH could be managed.   
 
Chairman Keiser:  The key point is the injured workers are not getting their benefits.  This 
is ridiculous.   
 
Tim Dawson~ Director of the Office of Administrative Hearings:  Attachment 2.  Ended 
testimony at 40:30. 



House Industry, Business and Labor Committee  
HB 1064 
Jan 30, 2019 
Page 2  
   

 
Rep P. Anderson:  Why are there only two claimant consults in the entire state for the bulk 
of this work? 
 
Tim Dawson:  I suppose it’s supply and demand; an economics issue.  
 
Rep Bosch:  There’s too much demand and not enough people to do the work, isn’t that 
right? 
 
Tim Dawson:  I would think that there is not enough paying claimants to support a diverse 
bar for WSI claimants.   
 
Rep Bosch:  There isn’t a bottle neck on your end but there is some place else? 
 
Tim Dawson:  No, I think there’s a bottleneck with us too.  This is a multifaceted area in 
which WSI needs to get better and everyone else needs to get better.   
 
Rep Bosch:  Do you have enough staff? 
 
Tim Dawson:  Yes.  When I started in 2016 we didn’t but now we have enough but we should 
have more just for contingencies.  I’ve learned things can change instantaneously unless you 
have people ready to take the work.   
 
Rep Bosch:  How many more ALJs do you think you’d need if you were going to add any? 
 
Tim Dawson:  We have contract ALJs and permanent ALJs.  Contract ALJs can take away 
load as it goes.  There are three of us in our office so there are issues with continuation of 
office when everybody flips over in a very short time.  Having more people in the office would 
help with that.    
 
Rep D Ruby:  You said this change would transfer the authority of your organization to have 
final say.  The two areas of change of using alternative hearing officers, it sounds like the 
hearing officers retain the findings of fact, the conclusions of law and orders.  Where would 
you say that it changes that portion? 
 
Tim Dawson:  It’s a compound sentence so you take out the part that doesn’t apply. If they 
can issue final decisions, then what are the hearing officers and the ALJ doing?  It’s clearly 
not the intent so it needs to be cleaned up. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  This is a quandary.  We need solutions and we are going to solve this 
problem.  We have to have meaningful evidence.  We need to start putting some restrictions 
on attorneys.  I’m concerned about their ability to bring in evidence after certain dates of 
discovery so maybe we need to tighten that up.  What about mandatory mediation before 
going to the ALJ?   
 
Tim Dawson:  I know other states do it and they have been successful.   
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Chairman Keiser:  The bottom line, please continue to meet.  We’ll give you until next 
Wednesday.  If you want us to draft a bill we will do it and I’ll fight for it.  The injured workers 
are not getting any benefits because your case is being held up.  We need some resolution 
here.     
 
Dean Haas~Practiced Workers’ Compensation Law:  Attachment 3.  Ended testimony at 
52:08. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  Closed hearing.   
 



2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Industry, Business and Labor Committee 
Peace Garden Room, State Capitol 

HB 1064 
2/6/2019 

Job # 32288 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk:  Ellen LeTang typed by Mary Brucker 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Hearing officer services provided by the office of administrative hearings. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1-2 

 
Chairman Keiser:  Reopens the hearing on HB 1064. 
 
Jodi Bjornson~General Counsel for WSI:  Attachment 1.  Goes over the proposed 
amendment.  Ended testimony at 6:14. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  There are two issues that you haven’t addressed.  They fall out of 
compliance with the dates for two consecutive quarters.  What if they come back into 
compliance in two subsequent quarters?  Does WSI have to come back to the system if 
they’re meeting that standard? The second issue is the complaint from ALJ and relative to 
the total length of time.  Sometimes WSI doesn’t get their attorney up and running for six to 
nine months which causes a delay for us.  Should there be conditions placed in this that 
requires WSI to act in a reasonable time or they have to use the ALJ? 
 
Jodi Bjornson:  You are right on the first question.  We didn’t go that far and think about 
whether or not we would go back to OAH but we would certainly consider that.  The second 
question on our attorney’s timelines, we don’t share that perspective from the information 
that we’ve received back from our lead counsel.  We got back a lot less than six months.  We 
are going to track the data to make sure we are accurate on that.  We’re going to do specific 
things as well to keep these cases moving along.   
 
Rep P Anderson:  The date that this starts running, couldn’t it be when WSI hires their first 
attorney?    
 
Jodi Bjornson:  It’s a horse apiece, it’s virtually the same amount of time.  It’s probably 
easier to do it this way.   
 
Rep P Anderson:  I struggle with WSI hiring the other provider because I believe that’s a 
conflict.  Could the other provider be from the ALJ office? 
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Chairman Keiser:  Conflict issues are a legitimate concern.  You shouldn’t get to pick and 
choose. 
 
Rep Bosch:  Is this amendment something you feel good about?  Can’t we keep the bill the 
way it is and agree to work towards this rather than putting it in statute? 
 
Jodi Bjornson:  We were asked to come up with something that we could work on.  Our 
main concern was accountability.  Mr. Dawson’s main concern is autonomy.  In merging 
those the best we could this is what we came up with.  We now have a contract with OAH 
but there’s no teeth to it which is why the law is required.  We need some sort of accountability 
or otherwise we won’t see the results.  We need to have an option. 
 
Rep Louser:  What we have now is a trigger then we would use a retrigger.  Let’s say 80% 
of the cases go to the new provider and OAH catches up then comes back into compliance.  
Would that be a likely outcome for a retrigger? 
 
Chairman Keiser:   Ideally we’d like the ALJs to be servicing WSI.  ALJs are the right avenue, 
but it needs to be in a timely fashion. 
 
Tim Dawson~Office of Administrative Hearings for OAH:  Attachment 2.  Ended 
testimony at 20:17. 
 
Vice Chairman Lefor:  Is there something else we should be doing to speed up the process?   
 
Tim Dawson:  That’s a difficult question.  There is a lot of history with WSI.  That’s more of 
a political question that I can’t answer.   
 
Chairman Keiser:  Was the advisory board aware of this issue prior to this bill? 
 
Illona Jeffcoat-Sacco, Chairman of the State Advisory Council:  No, we were not prior 
to this bill.   
 
Chairman Keiser:  That might be an area where we could have improvement.  What are you 
for if you don’t know what the problems are to advise on? 
 
Illana Jeffcoat Sacco:  That’s exactly right.  The reporting requirement in the bill mentions 
the reports go to the State Advisory Council.  Additionally, I’m sure the council will be having 
more conversations with OAH about issues like this if they exist.    
 
Chairman Keiser:  We have two amendments before us.  I might suggest that sometimes 
it’s best to take one step at a time process.  Let’s first take a look at the amendment Tim 
presented today and let ALJ see how it works out.     
 
Rep Schauer:  I don’t think kicking the can down the street is going to be beneficial.  This is 
a problem and we’re here to find a solution so we need to do that.   
 
Rep D Ruby:  MADE A MOTION TO ADOPT AMENDMENT from Tim Dawson’s hog house 
amendment. 
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Rep Bosch:  I’m not going to support this amendment.  I think we could pass the bill with the 
way it was presented.  We could have that conversation in two years.   
 
Rep Laning:  SECONDED 
 
Rep D Ruby:  The optics don’t look good.  I think that by tracking it in this way is going to 
help show where there are issues.   
 
Rep Adams:  If we put the amendment on the original bill are we still repealing the initiated 
measure from 2008?  
 
Chairman Keiser:  You have to read the amendment.  It says on page 1 line 1 after a bill 
replace everything with this.  This is a hog house amendment.  The original bill no longer 
exists.   
 
Rep Adams:  This goes away then? 
 
Chairman Keiser:  Yes.   
 
VOICE VOTE:  MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chairman Keiser:  What are the wishes of the committee? 
 
Rep D Ruby:  MADE A MOTION FOR A DO PASS AS AMENDED 
 
Rep Lefor:  SECONDED 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE:  10 YES     3 NO     1 ABSENT 
 
Rep Lefor will be the bill carrier. 
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2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Industry, Business and Labor Committee 
Roosevelt Park Room, State Capitol 

HB 1064 
3/5/2019 

Job # 33247 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk: Amy Crane 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
relating to office of administrative hearings case processing, tracking, and reporting. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Att. #1-2 

 
Chairman Klein: Opened the hearing on HB 1064. All members were present.  
 
Representative Keiser, District 47: We have tried to establish a reasonable system to 
resolve a dispute. One thing they can do is go to the review board, and on occasion DRO 
will contact WSI and disagree with the claim and they can provide relief for the injured 
workers. What we have set up as the administrative law judge, we have attempted to create. 
This is a hoghouse amended bill that changes dramatically. We had a number of claimants 
who had not been able to get in front of a law judge for over a two-year period. If you do go 
in front of an administrative law judge, you need to have a decision before you can get any 
compensation. We need this process to be timely. We worked with Jodi and Tim at WSI and 
came up with a plan. And if an injured worker doesn’t like an administrative law judge 
decision, you can go to district court which gets very expensive. It’s imperative that we get 
an administrative law judge system that is functioning as well as we can. Sometimes WSI will 
contract a case out to the private sector. Administrative judges have people that sign up to 
be a part of that system. They’re usually not employees, most of their work is contracted. 
You run into problems, like with availability of judges. The two groups got together and as a 
result of their discussion you have the bill before you. What they agreed is the office of 
administrative hearings will start the track and keep a schedule. There is an advisory board 
to the administrative law judge group and the chair came up to me and said we had no idea 
that some of these claims were out for two plus years. In subsection one we’re going to track 
the time elapse from the date the office receives the file from WSI and the date of the 
administrative law judge’s decision. And 2, the administrative hearing shall adopt case 
processing standard policies, these are somewhat formal, with a goal of an average of 215 
days or less per case. That doesn’t mean they have to adopt standards to give to the 
attorneys that they hire that lays out their expectations. There are always exceptions. There 
are a lot of people responsible for the delays. They have a lot of people. The office of 
administrative cases shall report this information regarding these cases to the legislative 
management and the state advisory council for administrative law judges. So we have put in 
a reporting requirement. This is an interim approach. If this doesn’t work, we’ll have to do 



Senate Industry, Business and Labor Committee  
HB 1064 
3/5/19 
Page 2  
   

something else. People frequently say that we are not overly concerned with the injured 
worker. This is a case where we are concerned about the injured worker and getting 
appropriate remedy in a timely fashion. So, out of our work came this process that was 
developed cooperatively between the two parties. And we think it’s worth a shot, we have to 
do something. Perhaps your committee has some ideas, we’re open to anything that will 
improve the quality and timeliness of the process.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: Any information on how other states approach this topic? 
 
Representative Keiser: It’s like comparing apples to oranges. We’re a monopolistic state. 
 
Senator Piepkorn: What does monopolistic mean? 
 
Representative Keiser: It means the state of North Dakota owns the insurance company, 
and employers pay the premium into this company, they manage all claims versus going to 
the private market and purchasing a worker’s comp coverage. Chairman Klein and I have 
given a presentation at the National Conference of Insurance Legislators and also at NCCI. 
You should be extremely proud of what North Dakota has compares to other states. We have 
come out of that presentation and had states ask us how they can duplicate it. Within the 
eleven regional states around us, we are number two or three in terms of wage replacement, 
ahead of South Dakota and Montana. North Dakota has lifetime medical benefits on a claim, 
in Montana the injured worker has to go back every state years and restart that claim to 
access medical benefits. No state in the union has a death penalty clause and we don’t have 
it just for death but for also for major injuries and total injuries, catastrophic death. We’ll pay 
for an injured worker’s wife and kids to go to college. No other state does this. It’s pretty 
impressive. And then recognize that we have the lowest premiums in the country. But 
anyways, injured workers were getting unhappy and were blaming WSI because that is their 
contact, they don’t understand the process. We think this bill is the first step. We think it’s the 
right things.  
 
Jodi Bjornson, General Counsel, WSI: see attachment #1 for testimony in support of the 
bill.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: When you talk about the average number of days is that business days 
or calendar days? 
 
Jodi: Calendar days.  
 
Timothy Dawson, Director of the Office of Administrative Hearings (OAH): see 
attachment #2 for testimony in support of the bill.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: What’s a short timeline? 
 
Timothy: 120-140 days. If the person is not represented they’re willing to go right away, so 
that can be a little bit quicker.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: So the short one could be ten days, then the longest one could go 500 
days? 
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Timothy: Yep.  
 
Chairman Klein: What we need to do is be sure that the two you’re providing us with line up 
with section 2 in the bill.  
 
Timothy: Right. You could put the word average in there and it would work as well.  
 
Chairman Klein: Closed the hearing on HB 1064.   
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☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk: Amy Crane 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to office of administrative hearings case processing, tracking, and reporting. 
 

Minutes:                                                 None.  

 
Chairman Klein: Opened the committee work session on HB 1064.  
 
Committee discussed Tim Dawson of OAH’s request to have the words ‘an average of’ put 
into the bill.  
 
Senator Roers: Moved to approve amendment.  
 
Senator Burckhard: Seconded.  
 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent.   
 
Motion carried.  
 
Senator Roers: Moved a Do Pass as Amended.  
 
Senator Burckhard: Seconded.  
 
Chairman Klein: Sometimes we get frustrated when we feel groups should work together to 
get stuff done, and then sometimes we throw in a bill and the groups work together and get 
it done. So that was neat in this case.  
 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent.   
 
Motion Carried.  
 
Senator Roers will carry the bill.  
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